
Santa Fe Magistrate Court RFP 
Questions and Responses 

 
Expertise/References: 
 

1. For the Past Record of Performance portion of the RFP response, due to the specialty of 
the project type, would you allow us to use projects that are older than 3 years in order to 
convey our expertise in the subject matter? We have designed many courthouses, however 
the majority were completed more than 3 years ago.  

2. On page 20 of 29, under the Past Record of Performance Section, Bullet 2: Provide a 
minimum of three (3) design related projects completed within the last three (3) years 
where the Offeror provided similar services with name of client(s) point-of-contact and 
telephone number or e-mail. Can this requirement be changed to projects completed within 
the past 3 to 10 years?  

Response for 1 and 2 above: Yes, we will accept projects from the past 10 years. We will make 
that amendment to the RFP and upload a new version. 

3. For the Past Record of Performance portion project examples, many of the points of contact 
for the projects have since retired. Can we submit projects that do not have a current point 
of contact? 

Response: Yes, but please include an explanation of why there is no current contact. 

 

Budget: 
4. What is the project budget for this project? 

Response: $20 million 

5. Per NMSA 13-1-120, regarding competitive sealed qualifications-based proposals for 
architects, engineers, and surveyors, selection committees are to select the most highly 
qualified businesses using any criteria except price. To comply with NMSA 13-1-120, can 
the cost proposal requirement be removed in its entirety? 

Response: We are not scoring based on price/cost proposals; this information is requested for 
budgeting purposes. Additionally, the cost information is requested as a separate sealed 
submission, not as part of the qualification-based bid. Therefore, we are still in compliance with 
code. 

6. On Page 18 of the RFP, there is a mention of a cost proposal (B. Proposal Format, 1. 
Proposal Organization, item f. Cost Proposal (in a separate file). Is a Cost Proposal required 
to be submitted? If it is required, what is the evaluation scoring weight for this item? 

Response: Yes, they are required. They not being scored, but we would still like to see them for 
budgeting purposes. 

  



7. Can you provide expectations for the Cost Proposal component of our proposal? Do you 
have more specific requirements for the response? 

Response: Again, we would like to clarify that cost proposals are not part of the evaluation or 
scoring criteria, but should be included as an estimate of costs for these services. We would even 
accept a percentage based on the total construction cost so that firm don’t feel like they need to 
commit to a specific number. 

Project Specifications: 
8. The RFP calls for “re-platting or other lot consolidation and separation procedures as 

required for compliance with the City of Santa Fe’s development processes.” We 
understand the intent is to consolidate the 5 lots into a single parcel. Section 14-3.7 
Subdivision of Land, of City of Santa Fe Municipal Code, does not describe a “separation 
procedure”. Is there an intent to create additional parcels, or simply consolidate them into 
a single lot? 

Response: Yes, we would like to consolidate them into one lot. 

9. Has there been any preliminary design work done for this project?  

Response: No 

10. Is it in the interest of AOC to have a LEED-certified building?  

Response: We would like to explore the potential for LEED certification, as long as it is not cost 
prohibitive. It desirable but not required.  

 

Bid Submission: 
11. Is there a specific Letter of Transmittal Form?  

12. RFP Section IV.B.2 – Letter of Transmittal, item h requests that firms include 
“acknowledge and acceptance of the terms and conditions of the Agreement attached as 
Appendix F.” Please provide the Agreement noted as Appendix F. The copy of the RFP 
provided on the AOC website ends with Appendix E. 

Response for 11 and 12 above: The Letter of Transmittal form was inadvertently left off the bid 
request. It is attached with these responses and has been uploaded in the amended RFP on the 
nmcourts.gov website 

13. If required, are cost proposals to be uploaded to the Google Drive as a separate PDF from 
the qualifications? 

Response: Yes, all cost information should be in a separate file 

14. Can cost proposals be submitted via email? 

Response: All documents may be submitted either via email or via Google Drive upload. However 
please choose one or the other to keep your complete submission in one location to avoid 
confusion. 



15. Are the insurance certificate and campaign contribution disclosure statement included in 
the 20-page limit? 

Response: No, only the actual proposal from your firm is part of the 20-page limit. None of the 
other ancillary documentation are included in the total. The cost information is also not included 
in the 20-page limit and should be a separate document.  

16. Is a landscape orientation LTR format acceptable for the PDF submittal? 

Response: Yes 

  



Letter of Transmittal Form 
 

Items #1 through 4 each must be completed in full (pursuant to section ii.c.30). Failure to respond to all 
four (4) items will result in the disqualification of offeror’s proposal. Do not leave any item blank!  

(n/a, None, Does not apply, etc. are acceptable responses.) 

 

RFP#: SF Mag. Ct. 2022-001 
 

1.  Identify the following information for the submitting organization:  

Offeror Name  

Mailing Address  

Telephone  

FED ID#  

NM CRS#  

 

2.  Identify the individual(s) authorized by the organization to (A) contractually obligate, (B) 
negotiate, and/or (C) clarify/respond to queries on behalf of this Offeror:  

 

 A 

Contractually Obligate 

B 

Negotiate* 

C 

Clarify/Respond to Queries* 

Name    

Title    

E-mail    

Telephone    

* If the individual identified in Column A also performs the functions identified in Columns B & C, then no response is required for those Columns. 
If separate individuals perform the functions in Columns B and/or C, they must be identified. 

 

3.  Use of subcontractors (Select one): 

____ No subcontractors will be used in the performance of any resultant contract, OR 

____ The following subcontractors will be used in the performance of any resultant contract: 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 
(Attach extra sheets, as needed) 
  



4.  Describe any relationship with any entity (such as a State Agency, reseller, etc. that is not a 
subcontractor listed in #3 above), if any, which will be used in the performance of any resultant 
contract. (N/A, None, Does not apply, etc. are acceptable responses to this item.) 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
(Attach extra sheets, as needed) 
 

By signing the form below, the Authorized Signatory attests to the accuracy and veracity of the 
information provided on this form, and explicitly acknowledges the following: 

• On behalf of the submitting-organization identified in item #1, above, I accept the Conditions 
Governing the Procurement, as required in Section II.C.1. of this RFP; 

• I concur that submission of our proposal constitutes acceptance of the Evaluation Factors 
 contained in Section V of this RFP; and  

• I acknowledge receipt of any and all amendments to this RFP, if any. 
 
 

 

________________________________________________ _____________________, 20______ 

Authorized Signature and Date (Must be signed by the individual identified in item #2.A, above.) 

 


